




























Strategic Planning: Factors Impacting the Future of the College

March 7, 2023

Lenora Keas
Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer



Focusing on the Future of the College

• MISSION STATEMENT
Del Mar College is a multi-campus community college providing access 
to affordable degree and certificate programs, customized workforce 
development, and continuing education opportunities for the successful 
educational advancement and lifelong learning needs of our 
communities.



Factors Impacting the Future Vision and Mission

• Impact of the Regional and State Economies on the Workforce
Corpus Christi Regional Economic Corporation Reports
Port of Corpus Christi
Workforce Solutions of the Coastal Bend

• Population Characteristics in the Service Area
Growth of the Counties
Attachment Survey by CCREDC

• Trends in Higher Education
Dr. Jim Lee, TAMUCC

• Legislative Impact on Funding and the Texas Higher Education 
Coordinating Board





MSA Unemployment Rates



$57Billion in
Regional 
Investment

AEP ADM
Air LiquideAmerica Corporation Bay
Ltd
Bootstrap Energy Buckeye
Partners Celanese Biushop 
Facility Chemours
Cactus II Pipeline
Cheniere Energy
CITGO
Corpus Christi Polymers, LLC 
ElementisChromium
EPICYGrade Excalibre
Minerals FlintHills
Resources
FlintHillsResources LoadingTerminal
Gulf CoastGrowth ventures (ExxonMobil/ SABIC) 
GravityMidstream
GulfCompress 
Haliburton
Howard Energy Partners 
Interstate Grain Corpration 
Kiewit OffshoreServices Ltd Koch
ExportFacility LyondellBassell
Magellan Midstream Partners
Howard Energy Partners (MarkWest Javalina) 
Martin Energy Services
Enbridge
NuStar Energy LP 
Oxychem/Mexichem
Pin Oak Corpus Christi LLC
Rangeland STEPS Terminal SDI
South TexasCement Steel
Dynamics Subsea 7
Superior Weighing Products 
TalenEnergy
Texas LehighCement Company Tex-
IsleSupply Inc.
TEDATPCOAmerica 
TrafiguraTerminals
Valero Bill Greehey Refinery 
voestalpine TexasLLC
BullMoose Tube 
Friedman Industries 
Ferragon
SMSGroup JM
Steel Feralloy 
Schiit Audio 
Thales



192000

194000

196000

198000

200000

202000

204000

206000

208000

210000

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027

Historic and Projected Job Trends in the MSA
Aransas, San Patricio and Nueces Counties



Largest Industries in the MSA

Government
Health Care and Social Assistance
Accomodation and Food Services
Construction
Retail Trade

0 10,000 20,000 30,000
Represents National Average



Top Industry Location Quotient in the MSA

Mining, Quarrying, and Oil and Gas Extraction

Construction

Accommodation and Food Services

Government 

Health Care and Social Assistance

Retail Trade
0.00 1.00 2.00 3.00 4.00 5.00



CCREDC Project Pipeline
14 Active Projects

3,371 Jobs $9.811 B Cap Ex

Projects             Jobs            Cap Ex                         Sector

7 501 $5.9B Green/Blue Energy 

4 1060 $4.1B Steel/Metal Fab

6 540 $110M Drones/Aviation

2 125 $100M Recycling

3 120 $1B Adv. Manufacturing





2022 Business Retention and Expansion Report 

TENACIOUS: As the aftermath of the 
pandemic continued in 2022, company 
leaders effectively adjusted to managing 
employees affected by Covid-19, long-term 
and skilled employees choosing to retire, 
and finding and placing employees for 
empty management and skilled positions. 



2022 Business Retention and Expansion Report 



themajorityof the projectportfolio was energy and 
chemical-related in 2019-2020, only a little more than a 
third of the currentproject portfolio is chemical/energy 
(includingnew hydrogen fuels)and the rest in new 
targeted sectors like steel/metal fabrication, UAS/drone, 
and green recyclablesmanufacturing.

NewmarkAdditionalSectortoPursue

Small and Mid-Sized Manufacturing (Including Advanced) 
PlasticProductsManufacturing
Fabricated Metals Manufacturing 
UAS (drones) and Aerospace

PortfolioofCurrentProjectsSnapshot

Energy/Chemical(includingGreen Fuels)35% 

UAS/Drone 25%

SteelandMetalFabrication 15% 

AdvancedManufacturing 15%

Recycling/GreenManufacturing 10%

FlippingYourCoastRecruitment

The Newmark Targeted Industry Study along with the 
completed “Our Coastal Bend” Quality of Place study 
completed in 2021 provided community recommendations 
in helpingwith the recruitmentof new technology-based, 
small privately owned companieswith WestCoast roots 
looking for a Texas location. CCREDC staff is pitching the 
Coastal Bend as an alternativeto the WestCoast with the 
“Flip YourCoast” campaign and is working several west 
coast-based projects.

TargetedIndustryStudy
It’s been two years since the 2022 Newmark targeted 
industry was presented to the CCREDC board and staff 
but the CCREDC began implementation of the new 
recommendedsectors in early 2021 and itswork is 
reflectiveof thediversityof thesectors in the current 
projectportfolio looking attheCoastal Bend. Whereas

Energy/Chemical 

(including Green 

Fuels)

Recycling/ 
Green 

Manufact-
uring

Advanced 

Manufacturing

SteelandMetal 

Fabrication

UAS/Drone

Recent investmentsinthelocalcommunity 
togrowthesetargeted sectors include:

-$4 million from the Corpus ChristiType B Incentive Fund 
for new downtown command centerfor Lone Star UAS 
CenterTAMU-CC-downtown command center(drones). 
Thiswilldiversifyoureconomy and establishus a center 
fordrone testingand innovation. Companies to locate 
hereto earn FAA certificationfor theirdrone platforms 
and drone crews.

-$2 million-Type A- TAMU-CC-Civil/Industrial Energy 
ProgramatTAMU-CC (energy)

-$2 million TAMU-CC-ElectricalEngineering Program at 
TAMU-CC (electrical/advanced manufacturing)

-$4.0 ProcessTechnologyProgram-Del Mar College 
(chemical processing)

Qualityof PlaceInitiatives
In August of 2020, CCREDC launched a community attachment study titled 
“OurCoastal Bend: Creating ourBest Place for People and Prosperity” 
through a partnership with Place + Main Advisors. Thepurpose of this 
project is to invest resources into creating the sense of place increasingly 
important to attracting and retaining people in the region.

Phase I of the survey has been completed, with a representative sample of 
area residents responding to a survey from September through November 
to assess attachment to the region. Phase II began January 2021, using 
quantitative and qualitative data to identify market specific drivers of 
attachment and the strengths, gaps, and improvements that can be made to 
enhance these assets in the region.

In 2022, Joe Borgstrom of Place + Main Advisors spoke to the Quality of 
Place Stakeholders group as well as the CCREDC Investors and the Corpus 
Christi City Council to discuss key recommendations and implementation 
strategies moving forward. The Stakeholder group met again October 1 to 
continue implementation plans.

Stakeholders:
Art Center of Corpus Christi
Art Museum of South Texas
City of Corpus Christi

City of Portland
City of Rockport/ Fulton 
Coastal Bend Innovation Center
Corpus Christi DowntownManagementDistrict 
Del Mar College
Portland Chamber of Commerce 
RockportChamber of Commerce 
TexasA&M University- Corpus Christi
UnitedCorpus Christi Chamber of Commerce 
Visit Corpus Christi

Young Business Professionals of theCoastalBend

RecommendationsSummary
• TalentRetentionPrograms

• 2,000 Additional Downtown ResidentialUnits

• Public Park + BeachfrontActivation

• IncreasedMixed Use Neighborhoods
• Walkable Neighborhood Design/Zoning 

Standards + Incentives

• BlightedProperties Program

• LitterCampaigns

• Pothole RepairWarranties

• PublicArt Programs

• Festivals+ Events
• Social Offerings/Community Concierge 

for TrailingSpouses/Job Programs

• TAMU-CC Presence Downtown Anchor
•Del Mar CollegeTuitionPrograms for local 

High School Graduates



The Energy Port of the Americas
By the Numbers

#1
U.S. Crude Oil Export Gateway

#1
U.S. Port by Annual Revenue Tonnage

7,736
Vessels moved in 2022

98,000
Accounts for more than 38% of the area’s labor force

Port-related Jobs in the Coastal Bend

LNG

$400M
Per day goods 

value movement

$6B
For Corpus 

Christi

$40B
For Texas

$400B
For U.S.

$65B
In private 

investment#2
U.S. Port in LNG Exports
Estimated 808 Bcf in 2022

Economic Impact

30,000+
Acres of land managed

Sources: 
U.S. Census Bureau
Dr. Jim Lee, TAMUCC
Port of Corpus Christi



$65 Billion Capital Investments
($12 Billion Foreign Direct Investments)



In Demand Skills in the MSA

Nursing

Merchandising

Marketing

Restaurant Operation

Selling Techniques

Auditing

Housekeeping

Accounting

Medical Records

Cardiopulmonary 
Resuscitation (CPR)

0 2,000 4,000 6,000 8,000 10,000
Represents National Average



Population Trends of the Service Area



2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Aransas County 24,832 24,763 24,462 24,220 24,149
Kleberg 31,450 31,425 30,974 30,725 31,015
Nueces 358,484 360,486 361,540 362,151 353,079
San Patricio County 66,867 67,046 67,008 66,969 68,755

0

50,000

100,000

150,000

200,000

250,000

300,000

350,000

400,000

Five-Year Population Trends by County

Source: data.census.gov/table; American Community Survey 5-Year Population Estimates



Population of the MSA –
Nueces, San Patricio and Aransas Counties

Combined population 
of the MSA is 446,998.

The region’s population 
declined by 1.5% from 

2017 to 2021.

Population is impacted 
by migration into and 
out of Nueces to San 

Patricio Counties.



Characteristics of the Population

• 20% or Over 91,000 are millennials (ages 25-39) same as the national average.

• 27% or Approximately 125,000 are 55 or older and could retire soon.

• Racial diversity is high compared to the nation. 69% of the population is minority compared 
to 40% nationally.

• Higher number of veterans than the nation at almost 32,000 individuals.



Population Overview

Almost 50% male to female 
ratio in the population.

Average earnings per job 
for 2022 was $64,000 

which is $15,600 below the 
national average per job.



Place Attachment Plan
Executive Summary
City of Corpus Christi

City Council



Recommendations from CCREDC Survey

Aesthetics + 
Community Assets

Social 
Offerings

Economic Offerings + 
Place Connectedness



Higher Education 
Expansion

Economic Offerings + 
Place Connectedness



18-34-YEAR-
OLD 
DEMOGRAPHIC

• Professional Development 
Efforts

• Home Ownership Assistance 
Programs

• Walkable Communities
• Diversity of Housing Stock
• Social Offerings



Trends in Education

• Educational attainment is 6.9% below the national average. 
13.9% have a Bachelor’s Degree
8.8% have an Associate’s Degree

• Nation-wide community college enrollment dropped approximately 
10% due to COVID 19. 



Educational Attainment in the MSA

Educational Level % of Population

A Less Than 9th Grade 6.8%

A 9th Grade to 12th Grade 8.8%

A High School Diploma 30.4%

A Some College 24.0%

A Associate's Degree 8.8%

A Bachelor's Degree 13.9%

A Graduate Degree and Higher 7.30%



Trends in Education

• Nationally women make-up approximately 60% of the College population.  
Males are stopping-out or not attending. 

• Disconnected youth since COVID 19 has increased more than the state 
average – not in school and not working.

• 19% of youth between the ages 16-24 are disconnected as compared to 
15% in 2015-19.

• More students are living in poverty.

Dr. Jim Lee, TAMUCC



88th Legislative Impact 
on Funding and the 
Texas Higher Education 
Coordinating Board



Considerations
Economic, Educational, 

Community Landscape & Trends

Stakeholder Engagement

State’s New Strategic Plan: 
Building a Talent Strong Texas

Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion

•Legislation passed from Commission of Community College 
Finance Funding Recommendations88th Texas Legislative Session

COVID-19 Recovery

Effective Teaching & Learning

Strategic Enrollment 
Management





QUESTIONS





















































MINUTES OF THE CALLED MEETING 
OF THE BOARD OF REGENTS OF THE DEL MAR COLLEGE DISTRICT 

 
February 14, 2022 

 
The Called Meeting of the Board of Regents of the Del Mar College District convened on Tuesday, 
February 14, 2023, at 10:00 a.m., at the Oso Creek Campus, Culinary Arts Building, Tres Grace 
Community Room, 7002 Yorktown Blvd., Corpus Christi, Texas with the following present: 
 
From the Board: 
 
Ms. Carol Scott, Mr. Carl Crull, Mr. Rudy Garza, Jr., Mr. David Loeb, and Dr. Laurie Turner. 
 
Dr. Nicholas Adame joined the meeting at 11:05 a.m. 
 
From the College: 
 
Dr. Mark Escamilla, President and CEO; Ms. Lenora Keas, Executive Vice President and COO; 
Mr. Raul Garcia, Vice President and CFO; Mr. Ali Kolahdouz, Vice President and Chief 
Information Officer; Dr. Jonda Halcomb, Vice President and Chief Academic Officer; Ms. Tammy 
McDonald, Vice President of Administration and Human Resources; Ms. Patricia Benavides-
Dominguez, Vice President for Student Affairs; Ms. Cheryl Sanders, Associate Vice President for 
Student Affairs; Mr. Augustin Rivera, Jr., General Counsel; Mr. John Strybos, Vice President and 
Chief Physical Facilities Officer;  Ms. Mary McQueen, Vice President of Advancement and 
Government Relations; Ms. Jessica Alaniz, Director of Risk Management; Ms. Delia Perez, 
Director of CEO Office and Board Relations, and other staff and faculty.  
 
CALL TO ORDER QUORUM CALL/MOMENT OF SILENCE/PLEDGE OF 
ALLEGIANCE/VISION STATEMENT 
 
Ms. Scott called the meeting to order with a quorum present.  She requested a moment of silence 
followed by the Pledge of Allegiance and Del Mar College Vision Statement. 
 
GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENTS – The public was given the opportunity to provide public 
comments (both general and specific to any agenda item). 
 

There were no public comments made for this meeting. 
 
ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION: 
 

1. Discussion and possible action relating to Appointment to fill At Large Regent Vacancy, 
including Applicant Interviews, Appointment of Regent, and Administration of Oath 
…………………………………………………………………………………Ms. Carol Scott 

(Goal 5: Workforce Development, Community Partnerships, and Advocacy) 
 



____________________________________________________________________________________ 
Called Meeting  Page 2 
February 14, 2023 
 

Six applicants, Dr. Anantha S. Babbili, Mr. Shawn Flanagan, Ms. Susan DeCou 
Lamb, Ms. Frances Morey, Mr. Julio C. Reyes, and Ms. Denise Villagran, submitted 
application materials in connection with the At Large Regent vacancy.  At a Called 
Meeting of the Board on January 31, 2023, three applicants, Dr. Anantha S. Babbili, 
Mr. Julio C. Reyes, and Ms. Denise Villagran, were chosen to be interviewed by the 
Board.  The three applicants drew for the order to interview.  The interview order 
was: Mr. Reyes, Ms. Villagran, and Dr. Babbili.  The applicants were allowed an 
opportunity to make a brief opening statement to introduce themselves and were then 
asked the following questions: 
 
1. What makes Del Mar College’s Mission powerful for you? 
2. What is a Regent’s role in a Community College and how would you carry out 

that role? 
3. What do you believe you would bring to the Board of Regents that makes you 

unique and best qualified to serve? 
 

The candidates were asked additional questions by individual Board Members and  
provided an opportunity to give a closing statement. 

 
At 11:19 a.m., the Chair announced the Board was going into Closed Session pursuant to: 
 

3.  CLOSED SESSION pursuant to: 

A. TEX. GOV’T CODE § 551.074(a)(1): (Personnel matters), regarding the 
appointment, employment, evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline, or 
dismissal of a public officer or employee, including Appointment to fill At Large 
Regent Vacancy, with possible discussion and action in open session; 

B.  TEX. GOV'T. CODE § 551.089: (Deliberations), regarding security devices or 
audits, regarding security assessments or deployments relating to information, 
resources, technology, network security information or the deployment or specific 
occasions for implementation of security personnel, critical infrastructure or 
security devices with possible discussion and action in open session; and 

C. TEX. GOV’T CODE § 551.071: (Consultation with legal counsel), regarding 
pending or contemplated litigation, or a settlement offer, with possible discussion 
and action in open session; and the seeking of legal advice from counsel on 
pending legal or contemplated matters or claims, with possible discussion and 
action in open session.  

The Board reconvened in Open Session at 12:04 p.m. 
 
Chair Scott thanked the three applicants interviewed that expressed interest for the At Large 
Regent Vacancy.   
 



____________________________________________________________________________________ 
Called Meeting  Page 3 
February 14, 2023 
 

Regent Kelly made a motion to appoint Dr. Anantha 
Babbili to fill the At Large Regent vacancy for the 
remainder of the term.  Regent Loeb seconded the motion.  
There was no further discussion from the Board.  A vote 
was taken by show of hands, and the motion passed, 6-0 
amongst Regents present, with Regents Scott, Adame, 
Crull, Garza, Loeb, and Turner in favor. 

 
Ms. Jessica Alaniz, Director of Risk Management, administered the oath of office to Dr. Babbili. 
 
ADJOURNMENT:  The meeting was adjourned at 12:07 p.m. 
 
       MINUTES REVIEWED BY GC:  /s/ARjr 
 
 



MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING 
DEL MAR COLLEGE DISTRICT 

 
February 14, 2023 

 
The Regular Meeting of the Board of Regents of the Del Mar College District convened on 
Tuesday, February 14, 2023, at 1:00 p.m., at the Oso Creek Campus, Culinary Arts Building, Tres 
Grace Community Room, 7002 Yorktown Blvd., Corpus Christi, Texas with the following present: 
 
From the Board: 
 
Ms. Carol Scott, Dr. Nicholas Adame, Dr. Anantha Babbili, Mr. Carl Crull, Mr. Rudy Garza, Jr., 
Mr. Bill Kelly, Mr. David Loeb, and Dr. Laurie Turner. 
 
From the College: 
Dr. Mark Escamilla, President and CEO; Ms. Lenora Keas, Executive Vice President and COO; 
Mr. Raul Garcia, Vice President and CFO; Mr. Ali Kolahdouz, Vice President and Chief 
Information Officer; Dr. Jonda Halcomb, Vice President and Chief Academic Officer; Ms. Tammy 
McDonald, Vice President of Administration and Human Resources; Ms. Patricia Benavides-
Dominguez, Vice President for Student Affairs; Ms. Cheryl Sanders, Associate Vice President for 
Student Affairs; Mr. Augustin Rivera, Jr., General Counsel; Mr. John Strybos, Vice President and 
Chief Physical Facilities Officer;  Ms. Mary McQueen, Vice President of Advancement and 
Government Relations; Ms. Delia Perez, Director of CEO Office and Board Relations, and other 
staff and faculty. 
 
CALL TO ORDER/QUORUM CALL 
 
Chair Scott called the meeting to order with a quorum present.  She requested a moment of silence 
followed by the Pledge of Allegiance and Del Mar College Vision Statement. 
 
GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENTS – The public was given the opportunity to provide public 
comments (both general and specific to any agenda item). 
 

There were no public comments made for this meeting. 
 
RECOGNITIONS: 
 

• Ashley Leiva, DMC Trucking Graduate, named 2022 National Transition Truck Driving 
for Excellence Award Winner in Washington, D.C. in December 2022 
……………………………………………………………………………Ms. Lenora Keas 
(Goal 3:  Academic Preparedness and Student Learning) 

Ms. Keas introduced Dan Korus, Dean of Corporate Services and Workforce Development, 
Lynette Cervantes, Director of Transportation Services Program, and Ashley Leiva, 
graduate of Del Mar College Transportation Training Services program.  Ms. Leiva won 
the 2022 National Transition Truck Driving for Excellence award in Washington D.C.  Ms. 
Leiva provided words of appreciation.  Chair Scott recognized Ms. Leiva and her 
accomplishments. 



_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Regular Meeting  Page 2 
February 14, 2023  

• Del Mar College faculty and staff, in collaboration with the Del Mar's General Counsel, 
hosted their 1st Annual Free Speech Day on October 20, 2022………Dr. Jonda Halcomb 
(Goal 4:  Learning Environments) 
 
Dr. Halcomb provided information regarding the Freedom of Speech event that took place 
on October 20, 2022.  The event included the importance of free speech and- the role of 
the First Amendment in the classroom, on campus, and beyond by Del Mar College’s 
General Counsel, Mr. Augustin Rivera, Jr.; round table discussion on free speech with the 
Foghorn News Editor-in-Chief, Ana Aldridge and local journalists, Ana Tamez, Tom 
Whitehurst, and Professor of Journalism Robert Muilenburg; and a panel discussion with 
faculty including Dr. Jim Klein, Craig Brashears, and Dr. Paul Gottemoller of Del Mar 
College, and Southern Methodist University’s Senior Research Fellow Dr. Michael Phillips 
to discuss a wide range of topics from the importance of academic freedom to First 
Amendment protections in the faculty role in shared governance.  Dr. Halcomb 
acknowledged everyone involved including the planning team who made the event a 
success.  Dale Anderson thanked all the participants.  Chair Scott recognized the Freedom 
of Speech event and congratulated their success. 

 
Chair Scott changed the order of the Agenda and asked Dr. Jonda Halcomb to introduce the 
Professor Emeritus recommendation. 
 
4. Discussion and possible action related to recommendation of Professor Emeritus status to  
 Elizabeth Flores, Professor of Political Science…...……...….………..Dr. Jonda Halcomb 
 (Goal 4:  Learning Environments) 
 

Dr. Halcomb presented Professor Elizabeth Flores to the Board for consideration of 
Professor Emeritus.  She stated Professor Flores has provided 43 years of service to the 
College which include Professor of Political Science, Interim Chair of the Center for Ethnic 
Studies, and Cultural Development, and as Program Coordinator for Mexican American 
Studies. During her tenure, Professor Flores demonstrated commitment, distinguished 
leadership, and notable dedication to the students, the College, and the community.  Dr. 
Halcomb read a resolution in honor of Professor Flores, and recommended the Board 
approve her Professor Emeritus status.  Chair Scott expressed the Board’s gratitude to 
Professor Flores.  Professor Flores provided words of appreciation and gratefulness. 
 

Regent Adame made a motion to adopt the Resolution to 
present Professor Elizabeth Flores with Professor Emeritus 
status.  Regent Crull seconded the motion. There was no 
further discussion from the Board. There were no public 
comments. A vote was taken by show of hands, and the 
motion carried unanimously 8-0, amongst Regents present, 
with Regents Scott, Adame, Babbili, Crull, Garza, Kelly, 
Loeb, and Turner in favor. 

 



_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Regular Meeting  Page 3 
February 14, 2023  

REGENT’S REPORT: 
 

• Community College Day at the Capitol, January 26, 2023 
(Goal 5:  Workforce Development, Community Partnerships, and Advocacy) 
 
Chair Scott reported that she along with Regent Averyt , Mary McQueen, Dr. Escamilla 
and approximately 30 Del Mar College students attended the Community College Day at 
the Texas State Capitol on January 26, 2023.  Along with participating in the day’s events, 
they meet with Senator LaMantia.  Chair Scott thanked Del Mar College Student Services 
for their hard work in facilitating participation to this event. 
 

• ACCT National Legislative Summit, Washington, D.C., February 5-8, 2023 
(Goal 5:  Workforce Development, Community Partnerships, and Advocacy) 
 
Chair Scott stated she and Regent Turner attended the ACCT National Legislative Summit 
in Washington, D.C.  Dr. Turner provided comments regarding her experience meeting 
other Regents, Texas legislature representatives, and other higher education teams.  Chair 
Scott stated they had good discussions with Congressman Michael Cloud, Senator John 
Cornyn, and Senator Ted Cruz. Chair Scott also reported that she placed her name for 
nomination of the Western Region Director for the ACCT Board of Directors, and if elected 
would serve a three-year term. 
 

STAFF REPORTS: 
 

• Update on the Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board’s Strategic Plan: “Building 
Talent Strong Texas”………………………………………………Dr. Natalie Villarreal 
(Goal 5:  Workforce Development, Community Partnerships, and Advocacy) 
 
Dr. Villarreal provided a brief history of the state’s education strategy and its goals.  
Initially, the four major areas focused on are participation, success, excellence, and 
research.  She reviewed previous state initiatives and introduced the new strategic plan for 
higher education called “Building a Talent Strong Texas.” which was adopted in February 
2022.  The three goals for Building a Talent Strong Texas are attainment, credentials of 
value, and research.  By expanding attainment to include all working age Texans, they can 
increase employment opportunities and income for individuals, create a deeper talent pool 
for employers, and align skills with the jobs the workforce demands. Credentials from 
Texas institutions of higher education must propel graduates into successful careers that 
equip them for continued learning and greater earning potential, with low or manageable 
debt. Texas must be a leading state in generating knowledge through basic and applied 
research and translating it to innovations, discoveries, and economic development.  This 
requires close partnership among key stakeholders to drive Texas’ economy. 
 



_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Regular Meeting  Page 4 
February 14, 2023  

Dr. Villarreal discussed how the College was going to integrate Building a Talent Strong 
Texas with the College’s strategic plan.  The framework of the Del Mar College strategic 
plan is going to use the Society for College and University Planning (SCUP) framework. 
Dr. Villarreal reviewed the 2024-2029 Strategic Plan 18-month timeline and the 
considerations the Strategic Planning Committee will evaluate including the state’s New 
Strategic Plan: Building a Talent Strong Texas; Board of Regents Visionary Workshop; 
Internal and External Stakeholder Engagement; Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion; 88th 
Texas Legislature Session; COVID-19 Recovery; Effective Teaching and Learning; and 
Strategic Enrollment Management. 
 
Dr. Villarreal and Dr. Escamilla responded to questions from the Board of Regents. 
   

• Legislative Update…………………………….………………………Ms. Mary McQueen  
(Goal 5:  Workforce Development, Community Partnerships, and Advocacy) 
 
Ms. McQueen provided an update regarding the Texas Legislature and the impact on the 
College.  She stated the 88th Texas State Legislature began January 10, 2023.  The primary 
focus is supporting the Texas Commission on Community College Finance (TXCCCF) 
recommendations, which include three main goals, and is moving to “outcome based” 
funding.  House Bill One and Senate Bill One is an appropriations bill that has $650 million 
requested from the Texas Commission on Community College Finance for additional 
funding for community colleges for the three initiatives.  Ms. McQueen discussed bills she 
is tracking. She will continue to keep the Board of Regents updated. 
 
Chair Scott provided commentary on the committee assignments. 
 
Ms. McQueen responded to questions from the Board of Regents. 

 
COLLEGE PRESIDENT’S REPORT…………………………………...Dr. Mark Escamilla 
(Goal 4:  Learning Environments) 
 

• Board Notification:  Racial Profiling Report Submitted to TCOLE 
(Goal 4:  Learning Environments) 
 
Dr. Escamilla introduced Ms. Tammy McDonald who provided a report on the Texas 
Commission on Law Enforcement (TCOLE) regarding racial profiling.  She stated as 
required under TCOLE, law enforcement agencies are required to file racial profiling 
reports once a year.  Del Mar College filed a Full Exemption Racial Profiling Report since 
it does not make traffic stops as a routine part of duties. 

 
• TACC Quarterly Meeting, January 25, 2023 

(Goal 5:  Workforce Development, Community Partnerships, and Advocacy) 



_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Regular Meeting  Page 5 
February 14, 2023  

 
Dr. Escamilla reported that she attended the quarterly meeting of the Texas Association of 
Community Colleges which has a new CEO, Mr. Ray Martinez.  One of the changes made 
is meetings during the Texas legislative session will now take place once a month.   
 

PENDING BUSINESS: 
Status Report on Requested Information 
(Goal 5:  Workforce Development, Community Partnerships, and Advocacy) 

 
CONSENT AGENDA 

 
Notice to the Public 

The following items are of a routine or administrative nature.  The Board of Regents has been 
furnished with background and support material on each item, and/or it has been discussed at a 
previous meeting.  All items will be acted upon by one vote without being discussed separately 
unless requested by a Board member or a citizen, in which event the item(s) will immediately be 
withdrawn for individual consideration in their normal sequence after the items not requiring 
separate discussion have been acted upon.  The remaining items will be adopted by one vote. 
 
CONSENT MOTIONS: 
(At this point the Board will vote on all motions not removed for individual consideration.)  
 
ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION: 

 
1. Approval of Minutes: 
 Regular Board Meeting, December 13, 2022 
 Called Meeting, January 31, 2023 
 (Goal 5:  Workforce Development, Community Partnerships, and Advocacy) 
 
2. Acceptance of Investments for December 2022 and January 2023 
 (Goal 6:  Financial Effectiveness and Affordability) 
 
3. Acceptance of Financials for December 2022 
 (Goal 6:  Financial Effectiveness and Affordability) 
 

 Regent Crull made a motion to adopt the Consent Agenda. 
Regent Adame seconded the motion. There was no further 
discussion from the Board. There were no public comments. 
A vote was taken by show of hands, and the motion carried 
unanimously 8-0, amongst Regents present, with Regents 
Scott, Adame, Babbili, Crull, Garza, Kelly, Loeb, and 
Turner in favor. 

 
 



_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Regular Meeting  Page 6 
February 14, 2023  

REGULAR AGENDA 
 
5. Discussion and possible action regarding the College’s Quarterly Investment Report for 

the period ending November 30, 2022...……...…………………Mr. Raul Garcia 
(Goal 6:  Financial Effectiveness and Affordability) 
 
Mr. Garcia introduced Mr. David McElwain with Patterson & Associates, a Meeder 
Investment Management Company.  He presented his report which included information 
regarding the College’s investments, performance and current economic conditions 
affecting the investments.   
 
Mr. McElwain stated the Consumer Price Index (CPI) peaked at 9.1% and the actual 
amount came in at 6.4%.  The easing of inflation has given the central banks some breathing 
space. Mr. McElwain reviewed treasury yields and presented information regarding the 
College’s portfolio. Mr. McElwain reviewed the College’s Pooled Funds and stated the 
market value of the portfolio is a little over $95 million and the market value is a little over 
$93 million.  The Series 2018 A Tax Bond funds book value for Fiscal Year 2022-2023, 
first quarter is $22.9 million with earnings in the amount of $31,948.00. The Series 2020 
(A & B) Tax Bond funds book value for Fiscal Year 2022-2023, first quarter is $21.1 
million with earnings in the amount of $25,778.00.  

 
Mr. McElwain, and Mr. Raul Garcia responded to questions from the Board of Regents. 
 

Regent Garza made a motion to approve the College’s 
Quarterly Investment report as presented.  Regent Loeb 
seconded the motion. There was no further discussion from 
the Board. There were no public comments. A vote was 
taken by show of hands, and the motion carried unanimously 
8-0, amongst Regents present, with Regents Scott, Adame,  
Babbili, Crull, Garza, Kelly, Loeb, and Turner in favor. 

 
6. Discussion and possible action regarding the College’s Quarterly Financial Report for the 

period ending November 30, 2022………...………………Mr. Raul Garcia 
(Goal 6:  Financial Effectiveness and Affordability) 

 
Mr. Garcia stated that the College’s financial condition is on solid footing based on the 
trending operating revenue and expenses.  Total financial revenues of $32.4 million for 
the quarter is on track relative to the planned budget.  The subject quarter’s revenue to 
budget rate of 30% is consistent with prior years.  The College’s operating expenses total 
$24.8 million.  Mr. Garcia continued with his review of the November 2022 balance sheet 
being well positioned to weather most business interruptions with a cash and investment 
position of $60.6 million, and the College’s risk reserve fund is valued at $8.6 million.  



_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Regular Meeting  Page 7 
February 14, 2023  

The College’s liquidity levels are sufficient to pay its current obligations valued at $20 
million as of November 2022.   
 
Mr. Garcia responded to questions from the Board of Regents. 
 

Regent Kelly made a motion to accept the College’s 
Quarterly Financial report as presented.  Regent Crull 
seconded the motion. There was no further discussion from 
the Board. There were no public comments. A vote was 
taken by show of hands, and the motion carried unanimously 
8-0, amongst Regents present, with Regents Scott, Adame,  
Babbili, Crull, Garza, Kelly, Loeb, and Turner in favor. 

 
7. Discussion and possible action regarding a possible tuition rate change for the 2023-2024 

fiscal year………………………………………………………..Mr. Raul Garcia 
 (Goal 6:  Financial Effectiveness and Affordability) 

  
Dr. Escamilla provided opening remarks and introduced Mr. Garcia.  Mr. Garcia reviewed 
the three major revenue streams of the College and stated that in comparison to our peer 
group, the College delivers the most affordable education with an average net price of 
$5,617.00.  Del Mar College students are saving as much as 65% on their cost of tuition 
and taking advantage of our hands-on student success services which include academic 
advising, and math and reading labs. 
 
Mr. Garcia reviewed out-of-pocket expenses for a full-time student enrolled in 15 hours. 
 
Ms. Sophia Jimenez, President of Student Government, addressed the Board regarding 
tuition changes.  Ms. Jimenez provided her personal experience regarding her college 
career and the obstacles the College has helped her overcome.  Ms. Jimenez also advised 
that in comparison to local universities, Del Mar College has many resources that are not 
offered elsewhere such as career development, resume help, clothes closet, emergency aid, 
and food pantry, and all at no cost to the students.  She helps students understand the 
difference in tuition and resources compared to other universities.  Ms. Jimenez thanked 
the Board for the opportunity to speak. 

 
There was a robust conversation regarding out-of-pocket costs and financial aid among the 
Board of Regents, Mr. Garcia, Ms. Benavides-Dominguez, and Dr. Escamilla.  
 
Mr. Garcia provided information regarding the College’s fall tuition and fee rate change 
history.   He  provided information of three rate increase scenarios ranging from $1 to $3.  
For an in-district $3 rate increase, a student will experience a rate increase of $48.00.  The 
$3 increase will provide the College with $405,000.00 to fund mission critical activities 
and minimize the loss of purchasing power caused by the current elevated inflation rate.   
 
Mr. Garcia provided information regarding employee compensation history.  The College’s 
employee compensation accounts for 80% of operating costs and stated the beginning of 



_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Regular Meeting  Page 8 
February 14, 2023  

employee compensation funding has begun with the budget planning process which will 
continue to be discussed towards the July and August time frame. 
 
Mr. John Strybos presented information regarding deferred maintenance and stated the 
current need for today is $150 million with an additional $101 million for the next 10-year 
period.  These amounts are for current priority projects needing to be addressed to continue 
with classes as well as future planning. 
 
Dr. Escamilla provided commentary regarding the factors influencing the strategic 
planning needs. 

 
Ms. Keas, Ms. Benavides-Dominguez, Mr. Garcia, Mr. Strybos, and Dr. Escamilla 
responded to questions from the Board of Regents. 
 

Regent Turner made a motion to adopt a $2 per semester 
hour rate increase.  Regent Garza seconded the motion. 
Further discussion was held among the Regents. There were 
no public comments. A vote was taken by show of hands, 
and the motion carried 4-3, amongst Regents present, with 
Regents Crull, Garza, Kelly, and Turner in favor; Regents 
Scott, Adame, and Loeb in opposition; and one abstention 
by Regent Babbili. 

 
8. Discussion and possible action relating to the Internal Audit Report for 

Purchasing/Procurement and Internal Audit FY 2023 Plan Status 
……………………………………………………………………Ms. Tammy McDonald 
(Goal 4:  Learning Environments) 
 
Ms. McDonald provided background information regarding the College’s Internal Audit 
Report for Purchasing/Procurement and Internal Audit FY 2023 Plan. She introduced 
Dan Graves and Brandon Tanous who provided their report.  This report presents the 
results of the internal audit procedures performed for Del Mar College during the period 
of July 11, 2022 through December 5, 2022 relating to the Purchasing processes of the 
College. The objectives of the internal audit were to evaluate the design and effectiveness 
of Del Mar College’s Purchasing processes as follows: A. Determine if internal controls 
are designed to ensure the effective management, administration, and compliance of 
Purchasing functions and responsibilities. B. Ensure that controls over selected critical 
processes within the Purchasing processes are operating efficiently, effectively, and 
resulting in consistent and compliant procedures that meet end user needs. C. Ensure that 
user access to view, process, modify and approve purchasing transactions is restricted to 
appropriate personnel and that access is periodically reviewed. 
 



_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Regular Meeting  Page 9 
February 14, 2023  

To accomplish these objectives, they conducted interviews and walkthroughs with 
personnel responsible for purchasing processes within the Purchasing, Business Services, 
and Information Technology (IT) Departments.  They also examined existing 
documentation, evaluated internal controls over the processes, and performed specific 
testing procedures to assess controls. The coverage period was from January 1, 2021 
through May 31, 2022. Procedures were performed both onsite and remotely and an exit 
meeting was conducted on December 5, 2022. 
 
Based on their evaluation, the Purchasing processes have procedures and controls in place 
designed to mitigate risks within the significant processes.  The recommendations for 
Purchasing were reviewed. 
 
Mr. Graves and Mr. Tanous responded to questions from the Board of Regents. 
 

Regent Garza made a motion to accept the Internal Audit 
report for Purchasing and Procurement as presented.  Regent 
Adame seconded the motion. There was no further 
discussion from the Board. There were no public comments. 
A vote was taken by show of hands, and the motion carried 
unanimously 8-0, amongst Regents present, with Regents 
Scott, Adame, Babbili, Crull, Garza, Kelly, Loeb, and 
Turner in favor. 

 
9. Discussion and possible action relating to the appointment of representatives to the Tax 

Increment Reinvestment Zone (TIRZ) Boards for TIRZ #2, #3, #4 and #5 
……………………………………………………………………………Ms. Carol Scott 
(Goal 5:  Workforce Development, Community Partnerships, and Advocacy) 

   
Chair Scott provided background information regarding the Tax Increment Reinvestment 
Zones (TIRZ) and the College’s participation.  She appointed the following Regents to 
active TIRZ zones: 
 
1. Libby Averyt to TIRZ #2 
2. Rudy Garza to TIRZ #3 
3. David Loeb to TIRZ #4 and #5 

 
Regent Crull made a motion to accept the Chair’s 
appointments as presented.  Regent Kelly seconded the 
motion. There was no further discussion from the Board. 
There were no public comments. A vote was taken by show 
of hands, and the motion carried unanimously 7-0, amongst 



_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Regular Meeting  Page 10 
February 14, 2023  

Regents present, with Regents Scott, Adame, Babbili, Crull, 
Garza, Kelly, and Loeb in favor. Regent Turner was not 
present for this vote. 

 
10. Discussion and possible action on Award of Contract for Request for Competitive Sealed 

Proposals, RCSP #2023-02, Del Mar College Building Renovations and Improvements 
Heritage Campus…………………………………Mr. John Strybos 

  (Goal 4:  Learning Environments and Goal 6:  Financial Effectiveness and Affordability) 
 

Mr. Strybos provided background information regarding the Request for a Competitive 
Sealed Proposal #2023-02 for the Del Mar College Building Renovations and 
Improvements Heritage Campus.  He stated the project is scheduled to be completed in 540 
calendar days after “notice to proceed.” This is a 2014 bond funded project. The building 
is vacant, and all asbestos abatement has been completed and is ready for construction.  
The recommendation was that the award go to SpawGlass Contractors, Inc. for $12.6 
million using 2014 bond funds.   

 
Mr. Strybos responded to questions from the Board of Regents. 
 

Regent Adame made a motion to accept staff 
recommendation to award the contract to SpawGlass 
Contractors, Inc. in the amount of $12.6 million using the 
2014 bond funds. Regent Turner seconded the motion. There 
was no further discussion from the Board. There were no 
public comments. A vote was taken by show of hands, and 
the motion carried unanimously 8-0, amongst Regents 
present, with Regents Scott, Adame, Averyt, Babbili, Crull, 
Garza, Kelly, Loeb, and Turner in favor. 

 
11. Discussion and possible action on Award of Contract for Request for Competitive Sealed 

Proposals, RCSP #2023-03, Windward Campus Emergency Response Training (ERT) 
Facility Improvements…………………………………………...……….Mr. John Strybos 

  (Goal 4:  Learning Environments and Goal 6:  Financial Effectiveness and Affordability) 
  

Mr. Strybos provided background information regarding the Request for a Competitive 
Sealed Proposal #2023-03 for the Windward Campus Emergency Response Training 
(ERT) Facility Improvements.  He reported that the project is scheduled to be complete 
210 calendar days after notice to proceed. This is a key part of the training which has 
confined space training and collapsed trench training. Also, on December 6, 2022, the City 
of Corpus Christi passed a resolution authorizing a 10-year Interlocal Agreement with 
automatic renewal every year with Del Mar College to provide fire, emergency medical 



_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Regular Meeting  Page 11 
February 14, 2023  

services, and other public safety related training for joint use for these facilities.   The 
recommendation is that the award go to Marshall Company Limited for $1.5 million.  The 
funding is partly from internal funding in the amount of $647,000, and the remaining 
balance will be from 2014 bond funds. 

 
Mr. Strybos responded to questions from the Board of Regents. 
 

Regent Crull made a motion to accept staff recommendation 
to award the contract to Marshall Company Limited in the 
amount of $1.54 million as presented. Regent Turner 
seconded the motion. There was no further discussion from 
the Board. There were no public comments. A vote was 
taken by show of hands, and the motion carried unanimously 
8-0, amongst Regents present, with Regents Scott, Adame,  
Babbili, Crull, Garza, Kelly, Loeb, and Turner in favor. 

 
12. Discussion and possible action on approval of 2016 Bond Oso Creek Campus 

Construction Project Change Order #13, Main, STEM, Culinary and Change Order #5 
Central Plant…………………………...……………………...…Mr. John Strybos 

  (Goal 4:  Learning Environments and Goal 6:  Financial Effectiveness and Affordability) 
 

Mr. Strybos provided background information regarding the 2016 Bond funding the design 
and construction of the Oso Creek Campus.  He reviewed the proposed Change Order #13 
Main, STEM, Culinary, and Change Order #5 Central Plant.   To address changes in the 
scope of work that have resulted from: (1) Architect’s Supplemental Information, (2) 
Request for Information (RFI) responses issued by the Architect, (3) Bulletin issued by the 
Architect, and (4) unforeseen sight conditions.  The change order for the Central Plant is 
$52,187, and the change order for the rest of the campus is $216,112.39.   The requested 
change orders are to get the campus completed as needed by the users, as well as address 
items identified by architects, engineers, and City of Corpus Christi staff about code 
compliance issues. These changes are funded with the 2016 bond funds. 
 

  Mr. Strybos responded to questions from the Board of Regents. 
 

Regent Babbili made a motion to approve Change Order #13 
for the Oso Creek Campus, and Change Order #5 for the 
Central Plant as presented. Regent Garza seconded the 
motion. There was no further discussion from the Board. 
There were no public comments. A vote was taken by show 
of hands, and the motion carried unanimously 8-0, amongst 



_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Regular Meeting  Page 12 
February 14, 2023  

Regents present, with Regents Scott, Adame,  Babbili, Crull, 
Garza, Kelly, Loeb, and Turner in favor. 

 
 13. Discussion and possible action regarding the Board’s Annual Ethics Update 
  ……………………………………………………………………Mr. Augustin Rivera, Jr. 
  (Goal 5:  Workforce Development, Community Partnerships, and Advocacy) 

 
Mr. Rivera provided a historical background review of the Board’s long-standing 
commitment to ethics and ethics training.  He reviewed the history of the Ad Hoc Bylaws 
Committee for the purpose of reviewing and updating the Board’s Bylaws and Statement 
of Conduct and Ethics. After substantial work and time to the project, the Ad Hoc 
Committee proposed additions and revisions to the Bylaws for clarity and improvement, 
and the changes were approved in the Fall of 2021. 

 
Mr. Rivera stated ethics statements do not guarantee ethical behavior, but they do serve to 
remind leaders that ethical consideration should guide their behavior.  He continued with 
his review of authoritative sources for ethics and best practices, reviewed the Statement of 
Ethics in the Bylaws, and reviewed the new preamble as well as a review of the Bylaws 
which were provided to the Regents prior to the meeting.  He provided an update regarding 
the Houston Community College vs Wilson case and the U.S. Supreme Court’s decision 
made on March 24, 2022 regarding a Regent’s First Amendment rights. 

 
At the conclusion of the ethics review, Mr. Rivera passed out the Code of Ethics Form and 
the Personal Disclosure Statement to each Board member.  The Board was asked to sign 
and return them at the March 2023 Board meeting, or send them to the Office of General 
Counsel. 
 

At 4:41 p.m., the Chair announced that the Board was going into Closed Session pursuant 
to: 
 
14. CLOSED SESSION pursuant to: 
 

A. TEX. GOV’T CODE § 551.074(a)(1): (Personnel matters), regarding the 
appointment, employment, evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline, or dismissal of 
a public officer or employee, with possible discussion and action in open session;  

 
B. TEX. GOV’T CODE § 551.089: (Deliberations), regarding security devices or audits, 

regarding security assessments or deployments relating to information, resources, 
technology, network security information or the deployment or specific occasions for 
implementation of security personnel, critical infrastructure or security devices with 
possible discussion and action in open session; and, 
 

C. TEX. GOV'T CODE § 551.071: (Consultation with legal counsel), regarding pending 
or contemplated litigation, or a settlement offer, with possible discussion and action in 
open session; and the seeking of legal advice from counsel on pending legal or 
contemplated matters or claims, with possible discussion and action in open session. 



_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Regular Meeting  Page 13 
February 14, 2023  

 
The Board of Regents reconvened in Open Session at 5:06 p.m. with no action taken. 
 
CALENDAR:  Discussion and possible action related to calendaring dates. 
 
ADJOURNMENT:  The meeting was adjourned at 5:09 p.m. 
 






















































	Agenda
	Student Success Highlight
	Regent's Report
	Staff Reports
	Strategic Planning
	Legislative Update
	Property Tax Assessment

	Pending List
	Consent Agenda 1
	Consent Agenda 2
	Consent Agenda 3
	Regular Agenda 4



